LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Date: Tuesday 12 March 2019
Time: 7.00 pm
Venue:

Committee Room (B6) - Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov
Members of the Committee
Councillor Linda Bray, Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Martin Tiedemann, Councillor Rezina
Chowdhury, Councillor John Kazantzis, Councillor Joshua Lindsey, Councillor Philip Normal, Councillor
Emma Nye, Councillor Becca Thackray and Councillor Irfan Mohammed
Substitute Members
Councillor Matthew Bennett, Councillor Jennie Mosley, Councillor Andy Wilson, Councillor Marcia
Cameron, Councillor Jon Davies, Councillor Dr. Mahamed Hashi and Councillor Claire Holland
Members Required for this meeting will be: Councillor John Kazantzis, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury,
Councillor Fred Cowell

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Nazyer Choudhury, Telephone: 020 7926 0028; Email: nchoudhury@lambeth.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. If you have any specific needs please contact
Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.
Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.
Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, you should aim to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 – or the number on the front
page.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING
Page
Nos.

1.

Election of Chair

2.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para. 4))
in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a committee,
sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from the meeting
room during the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not
participate in any vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been
obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

3.

Minutes

1 - 16

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2019
as a correct record of the proceedings.

4.

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises
Licence

17 - 22

Strategic Director, Residents Services
Contact: Bina Patel, Licensing Manager, 020 7926 4103
Email: bpatel@lambeth.gov.uk

a)

Bagel World, 516 Brixton Road, London SW9 8EN (Ferndale)

23 - 82

b)

ZB Retail 24, 41 Streatham Hill, London SW2 4TP (Streatham Hill)

83 - 148

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.
Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)

HEARING PROCEDURE FOR LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Full information on the procedure is sent to all parties to the hearing. The information below is a
précis of that information.
Parties to the hearing must notify Licensing Services within prescribed timescales (these vary
according to the type of hearing) that they intend to attend and/or be represented at the hearing
and whether any witnesses will be attending on their behalf.
The hearing will operate as follows (subject to the discretion of the Chair)


In the form of a discussion led by the Committee; cross examination will not normally be
permitted.



A total of 3 minutes speaking time is normally allowed for each party. Any preliminary
points will be treated separately.



Where there is more than one representation raising the same or similar grounds, those
parties should consider nominating a single representative to address the Sub-Committee
on their behalf at the hearing.



Parties to the hearing may be permitted to ask questions of any other party or witness.



Parties to the hearing may be required to answer specific questions from members of the
committee seeking clarification of information.



The typical order of the hearing will be as follows:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

Chair will ask all parties and witnesses to introduce themselves and this should include
a brief explanation of the purpose of their attendance.
Officers present the report.
Committee members ask questions of officers.
Applicant speaks.
Applicant's witnesses speak (with permission of Chair).
Committee members ask questions of applicants and their witnesses (only applies to
witnesses who have been given permission to speak).
Other parties speak.
Other parties’ witnesses speak (with permission of Chair).
Committee members ask questions of the other parties to the hearing and their
witnesses (only applies to witnesses who have been given permission to speak).
Applicant (with exception and with permission of Chair) asks questions of the other
parties to the hearing and their witnesses.
Other parties to the hearing (with exception and with permission of Chair) ask
questions of the applicant/other parties to the hearing and their witnesses.
Chair's closing remarks.
Committee retires to make their decision.
Legal adviser informs the hearing of any advice that they have given to the committee
during the decision making process.
Committee announces decision and gives reasons.
After the hearing officers will write to all parties to confirm the committee's decision.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

L
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Tuesday 5 February 2019 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Joshua Lindsey and Councillor
Philip Normal

APOLOGIES:
ALSO PRESENT:

1

ELECTION OF CHAIR
MOVED by Councillor Joshua Lindsey, SECONDED by Councillor Philip Normal and
RESOLVED: That Councillor Fred Cowell be elected Chair.

2

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
None were declared.

3

MINUTES
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of 10 January 2019 be agreed and signed as a correct record of the
proceedings.

4

LICENSING APPLICATIONS FOR THE GRANT / REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE

4a

PAYLESS FOOD AND WINE, 128 STOCKWELL ROAD, LONDON, SW9 9HR
(LARKHALL)
The Licensing Officer informed the Sub-Committee that the applicant wished for the
application to be adjourned as the DPS had a bereavement in Pakistan and the applicant
was in Pakistan on holiday.
In response to questions from members, the Licensing Manager, Ms Bina Patel, informed
the Sub-Committee that:
 She objected to the applicant’s wish for the application to be adjourned.
 The premises was still selling items that was against the conditions of the

Page 2
licence to sell.
 Two bottles of alcohol which the premises was not allowed to sell had been sold
in a test purchase.
In response to questions from Members, Mr Bernard Conmy, Trading Standards Officer,
informed the Sub-Committee that:
 It was the decision of the Sub-Committee whether or not they wished to hear
the application in the applicant’s absence.
 He would invite the Sub-Committee to hear the application rather than adjourn
it.
In response to questions from Members, PC Constable informed the Sub-Committee that:
 He acknowledged that the applicant had a bereavement but the interested
parties could have been notified sooner.

Adjournment and Decision
At 7.08pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the Legal adviser
and clerk to deliberate in private. The Sub-Committee had heard and considered
representations from all those who spoke.
Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open to them and the need
for any decision to be proportionate. The Sub-Committee decided to refuse the application
to adjourn.
RESOLVED: To refuse the application to adjourn.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to
refuse the application to adjourn. The Sub-Committee had carefully considered all the
representations made and had decided to refuse the application to adjourn.
The Sub-Committee was of the view that the application should be heard in the absence
of the applicant and noted that it was the applicant who had submitted the variation
application.

Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a variation of a
premises licence. The Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to chapters 2, 3, 8, 9 and 10
of the Statutory Guidance and Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 16 of the Statement of
Licensing Policy as the ones particularly relevant to this application. The options available
to the Sub-Committee were set out in paragraph 6.2 of the report on page 19 of the
agenda papers.
The Licensing Officer confirmed:
 This was an application to vary a premises licence.
 The variation was to remove one condition which did not allow the premises to

Page 3
sell alcohol above 6% abv.
 The applicant was not in attendance at the meeting.
 The application had been objected to by the Police, Licensing team and Trading
Standards
Presentation from interested parties
PC Mike Constable informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The premises had failed the test purchase and was found to be selling Nigerian
Guinness and Dragon Stout.
 Police had no faith in the premises licence holder’s ability to uphold the
licensing objectives enough to be able to warrant a removal of the condition.
 The condition was in place to prevent street drinking.
Mr Bernard Conmy, Trading Standards, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 This was a variation application which had been prompted by a visit to the
premises which had found items on sale at the premises in breach of the
licensing conditions.
 The reason the condition was in place was to tackle street drinking.
 Stockwell was very well-known for street drinking issues.
 Page 6 of the agenda papers outlined the problems caused by super strength
alcohol. Pages 41, 42 and 43 provided further information on the issue,
including specifically dealing with homelessness.
 Page 44 of the agenda papers showed another report regarding alcohol
consumption and its relationship to street drinking.
 As outlined by the evidence, the condition that the applicant was proposing to
be removed should not be removed.
Ms Bina Patel, Licensing Manager, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 She would reiterate what the objectors had stated.
 Given the nature of the applicant failing the compliance visit, that the applicant
had disregarded all breaches of the premises licence and that breaches of the
premises licence had been identified in November 2018, there was no
confidence in the applicant’s ability to uphold the licensing objectives.

Adjournment and Decision
At 7.21pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the Legal adviser
and clerk to deliberate in private. The Sub-Committee had heard and considered
representations from all those who spoke.
Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open to them and the need
for any decision to be proportionate. The Sub-Committee decided to refuse the

Page 4
application.
RESOLVED: To refuse the application.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to
refuse the application. The Sub-Committee had carefully considered all the
representations made and had decided to refuse the application.
The Sub-Committee was of the view that the application should be refused. Full written
reasons would follow in due course.

4b

ZB RETAIL 24, 41 STREATHAM HILL, LONDON SW2 4TP (STREATHAM HILL)
Mr David Dadds, representative for the applicant, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 He would like the application to be adjourned so that the Licensing team could
consider a recent application regarding the transfer of the premises.
 He had additional papers regarding the transfer of the premises and that these
papers contained confidential information regarding the sale of the business.
 Hearing the application at a future date, given the developments regarding the
premises, would allow all parties to be more well-informed and possibly reach
an agreed position prior to the next hearing.
 It was in the public interest to adjourn the hearing.
 Copies of the proposed transfer could be given to the Legal Officer and the
Licensing team.
At this point in the proceedings, the Legal Officer informed the meeting that he had seen a
number of documents in reference to the transfer of the premises, such as documents
pertaining to the lease and its stock valuation. The transfer of the premises had been
completed on 30 January 2019. Furthermore, VAT registration and the PAYE registration
were in place. Stamp duty and tax were also being collected. The earliest documentations
appeared to suggest that the transfer of the property had been in process for some time.
The sales documentation appeared to be in the process of completion by a separate firm
of solicitors to those acting in this application and the sale appeared to be a bona fide
sale. Further, the applicant, in order to transfer the licence and vary the DPS, would have
to make an application which could be objected to by the Police.
In response to questions from Members, PC Mike Constable informed the Sub-Committee
that:
 He agreed that all necessary checks should be allowed to be made regarding
the application and did not object to an adjournment.
In response to questions from Members, Ms Helen Pooley, representative for the
Licensing team, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 She did not object to the application to adjourn given that the application to
transfer the licence was still pending.
Adjournment and Decision

Page 5
At 7.32pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the Legal adviser
and clerk to deliberate in private. The Sub-Committee had heard and considered
representations from all those who spoke.
Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open to them and the need
for any decision to be proportionate. The Sub-Committee decided to grant the application
to adjourn.
RESOLVED: To grant the application to adjourn.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to
grant the application to adjourn.
Full written reasons would follow in due course.
The Chair stated that given all parties were in agreement for the adjournment and that the
application to adjourn was made on reasonable grounds. The application would be
adjourned and would be re-scheduled to be heard on 28 March 2019. The Sub-Committee
noted that if there were to be objections regarding the transfer of the DPS and the
premises, then this could be considered on that date. The Sub-Committee would ask for
documents confirming the sale and transfer of the premises and these documents should
be made available to the Licensing team and all relevant parties.

4c

PREMIER FOOD AND WINES, 139 SOUTH LAMBETH ROAD, LONDON, SW8 1XB
(STOCKWELL)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a review of a premises
licence. The Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to chapters 2, 3, 9, 10 and 11 of the
Statutory Guidance and Sections 1, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11 and 19 of the Statement of Licensing
Policy as the ones particularly relevant to this application. The options available to the
Sub-Committee were set out in paragraph 6.1 of the report on page 114 of the agenda
papers.
The Licensing Officer confirmed:
 This was an application to review the premises licence.
 The applicant was being represented by Ms Helen Pooley and Mr Sean Biggart
from Public Protection.
 The review application had been subsequent to a visit to the premises which
found an individual working at the premises who did not have the right to work in
the UK. Additional breaches of the premises licence had also been observed.
 Representations had been received in support of the review application from the
Licensing team, PC Constable and Councillor Lucy Caldicott.
 Representing the premises licence holder was Mr Stevens.
The representative for the applicant, Ms Pooley, informed the Sub-Committee that she
would like to refer to the witness statement (found in the agenda papers) from Mr Keith
Badrick as his statement related to the representation made by the Licensing team. Mr
Badrick’s statement referred to the individual who did not have the right to work in the UK
and his understanding of the English language but it later became apparent that he was
capable of understanding what was going on around him.

Page 6
The Chair stated that the Sub-Committee would progress with the hearing and seek Legal
advice were necessary.
Presentation by the applicant
The representative for the applicant, Ms Pooley, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 There had been reviews and issues highlighted by Trading Standards and
events that had occurred prior to this review.
 In October 2018, the premises had failed a test purchase and this was followed
by a subsequent visit to the premises by the Licensing team on 2 November
2018.
 There were concerns regarding breaches of the licensing conditions and the
presence of an individual who did not have the right to work in the UK on the
premises.
 In relation to the breach of conditions, there were three key areas where the
licensing objectives were not being upheld.
 Firstly, the premises was found to be selling single cans of alcohol, something
the premises was not allowed to do following a review of the premises in 2013.
 Secondly, the premises staff did not appear to be updating the refusals register
after the licence was reviewed in 2013.
 Thirdly, there were other issues found on 2 November 2018 that appeared to
indicate that the premises was selling single cans of alcohol and that the
upkeep of the refusals register was still an on-going problem.
 A test purchase was carried out at the premises on 20 October at 01:20 and
officers were able to purchase a can of Fosters.
 A staff member working at the premises was asked to provide a refusals
register, in which, the last entry was 10 May 2018.
 Another test purchase was carried out on 26 October 2018 where an officer was
refused a sale but the register appeared to show that the last refusal was 16
July 2018.
 The sale of the single can of alcohol being sold on 20 October 2018
demonstrated a breach of condition as the premises was not allowed to sell
single cans of alcohol.
 The sale of a single can of alcohol showed lack of appreciation of
responsibilities from the premises licence holder.
 At a visit to the premises on 2 November 2018, a broken 4 pack of beer and
larger were found along with a bottle opener found behind the counter. Staff
stated that this was for opening bottles of soft drink, but the premises did not
appear to sell any.
 The premises licence holder had stated that the sale of the single can of alcohol
had been sold whilst the relevant staff member was on a coffee break, but this
meant that an unauthorised individual had taken control of the premises and
had sold the item. This showed an ineffective management of the premises.
 There were insufficient staff members working at the premises as staff were
able to exit the premises and leave underqualified staff in charge. This was not

Page 7
an excuse the Sub-Committee should consider as being justified.
 On 20 October 2018, the refusals register appeared to show the last dated
refusal as May 2018.
 On 26 October 2018, a new entry was found in the refusals register; 16 July
2018.
 Mr Badrick’s statement highlighted the risk register, which he stated was poorly
kept and not kept up to date.
 Following this, the premises staff provided refusals registers (found in annex C
of the agenda papers).
 An individual who did not have the right to work in the UK was found working on
the premises and this was serious in nature and the guidelines stated that the
Sub-Committee needed to take such issues of criminal activity on premises
seriously.
 Finding an individual who did not have the right to work in the UK further
demonstrated ineffective management, particularly in the context of the history
of the premises.
 There had been two previous reviews of the premises licence and other
responsible authorities had raised issues relating to the premises in the past.
 The evidence demonstrated that the Sub-Committee should not be able to
genuinely believe that imposing further conditions on the licence would have
any effect on how the premises would be run.
 The appropriate and proportionate response by the Sub-Committee would be a
revocation of the premises licence.
 The evidence pointed to a problem with effective management and a lack of
employees clear on their responsibilities.
 In relation to the refusals register, there appeared to be an inconsistency in who
was filling in the register as there appeared to be a document written by Mr
Sultan requesting to be an employee on 25 September 2018 but his name
appeared in the refusals register on 16 February 2018.
The representative for the applicant, Ms Pooley, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 A broken 4-pack of alcohol and the presence of a bottle opener found on the
premises in addition to a failed test purchase on 20 October 2018 indicated that
sales of single cans of alcohol was something that occurred at the premises.
 When staff members were challenged regarding the finding of the bottle opener,
they had said they used it for soft drinks and it was up to the Sub-Committee to
decide if this was a sufficient reason.
 Finding an individual who did not have the right to work in the UK warranted the
Sub-Committee to take serious action regarding revocation of the premises
licence in the first instance. This should be considered alongside the breaches
of condition put in place following the previous review and in the context of the
previous review hearing not having had an effect on how the premises was
being run.
 The premises had also been given warnings in July 2016 and there had been

Page 8
complaints from residents which had been included in the agenda papers.
Presentation by interested parties
PC Constable informed the Sub-Committee that:
 The agenda papers referred to a case in East Lindsey, Lincolnshire, where a
vulnerable person was exploited and this was a breach of criminal law.
 The employment of an individual who did not have the right to work in the UK
was a serious offence, especially where vulnerable individuals were involved
and it was the responsibility of the responsible authorities to take necessary and
proportionate steps to deal with these situations.
 Attempts had not been made by the premises licence holder to make the
necessary checks to ensure that the individual actually had the right to work in
the UK.
 A member of staff at the premises appeared to show a complete lack of
knowledge of the Licensing Act and it was not possible to trust someone to sell
alcohol and tobacco if they did not have a basic understanding of the licensing
regulations.
 In his experience, the keeping of bottle openers by premises licence holders
was done so that bottles of alcohol could be opened after they were sold to
increase revenue.
 There appeared to be a lack of management and control at the premises.
 Sales of single cans increased the likelihood of street drinking which affected
residents in the area.
 Mr Badrick’s statement informed that the premises licence holder had several
craft and Stanley type knives at the premises and a sledgehammer handle that
was behind the counter. It was not clear why anybody would have this. These
types of items were usually only used in jobs where boxes had to be opened
and this would not be needed near the counter.
 The Police did not have any faith that the premises licence holder would be able
to uphold the licensing objectives.
In response to questions from Members, PC Constable informed the Sub-Committee that:
 It was not possible to condition criminality which was why other laws were in
place in addition to licensing laws.
Councillor Lucy Caldicott informed the Sub-Committee that:
 She would focus her representation on crime and disorder, public disorder and
public nuisance.
 Since she had been elected a Councillor, she had received several complaints
regarding anti-social behaviour, crime and noise disturbances near where the
premises was based.
 The premises had not been unfairly singled out.
 Residents had contacted her regarding littering and criminality in the South

Page 9
Lambeth Road area.
 There were persistent street drinkers near the premises outside the Ladbrokes
shop. There were empty bottles of Dragon Stout and other litter that could be
found in the area. She had taken photos of these yesterday.
 The premises licence holder had held a premises licence since 2012.
 The licence had been reviewed first in 2013. In July 2016, additional warnings
had been given to the premises licence holder but since then, there had been
multiple breaches of the premises licence.
 She requested a revocation of the premises licence.
At this point in the proceedings, with the agreement of all parties, Councillor Caldicott
circulated the photos she had taken.
In response to questions from Members, Councillor Caldicott informed the Sub-Committee
that:
 Her pictures were taken on 18 January 2019 and yesterday morning.
 The miniature bottles and cans of beer were found immediately outside the
premises.
 There were issues around littering and public disorder near the Ladbrokes
betting shop in the area. There were also issues of aggressive behaviour, drug
taking and anti-social behaviour.
 Conditions imposed on the licence could possibly be a reasonable response if
the issues raised at the premises were general complaints, but the criminality
and additional concerns raised meant that revocation would be a more
appropriate measure.
 Knife crime had been an area of great concern in recent months and premises
staff keeping knives behind the counter was a concern for public safety.
Ms Bina Patel, Licensing Manager, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 There had been failings at the premises since its last review.
 There had been issues relating to underage sales at the premises.
 Complaints had been observed in relation to the premises.
 The premises licence holder was failing in his responsibility as a licence holder
and failing to meet the conditions of the licence, especially the ones imposed in
2013.
 Despite warnings and inspection visits, breaches in conditions had been
observed and had employed an individual who did not have the right to work in
the UK. This constituted a criminal offence and the Licensing team supported a
revocation of the premises licence.
In response to questions from Members, Ms Patel informed the Sub-Committee that:
 There was initial intervention at the premises in 2016 following a sale to an
underage person and the premises licence holders were reminded of their

Page 10
obligations.
 The Licensing team had received complaints from residents during the summer
last year leading to a test purchase of single can of alcohol. This followed the
checks in November 2018 which finally led to the review application.
 The review application had not been made solely based on one concern.
 The Licensing team had not had any contact made by the premises licence
holder following July 2016.
At this point in the proceedings, the Legal Officer stated that he noted a letter from Mr
Yemane seeking employment, that he had seen when he was sent documents for
clearance, did not appear to be in the agenda papers. He asked Mr Stevens if this was
something that was meant to have been included in the papers.
In response, Mr Stevens, representing the premises licence holder, stated that some of
the paperwork had not been received by the Licensing team because there had been
difficulty with emails. He also had difficulty receiving emails from the Licensing team. He
had sent photographs by email and had been told they had not gone through. Mr Stevens
confirmed that the letter was something that could be put before the Sub-Committee.
Presentation by the premises licence holder
The premises licence holder, Mr Mohammad Najib and his representative Mr Stevens,
informed the Sub-Committee that:
 They agreed with everything Councillor Caldicott had said.
 The premises was located near a parade of shops.
 The premises was located on the corner of the road.
 The Ladbrokes in the area was open until 00:00.
 There were 5 or 6 licensed premises in the area.
 There was also a licensed premises in the area similar to Premier Food and
Wine which sold miniature bottles of alcohol and single cans of alcohol.
 Although the premises was a 24 hour shop, the shop nearby closed at 23:00 but
had no restrictions on selling miniatures or high alcohol beers or lagers.
 Subsequent to the review application, conditions had been imposed on the
premises licence in 2013. The premises was not allowed to sell single cans of
beer, lager or cider and no beer larger or cider greater than 6% abv would be
allowed to be sold. No alcohol would be sold to street drinkers and there would
be no sale of bottles or miniature bottles of cider.
 The pictures submitted by Councillor Caldicott showed bottles and miniature
containers of indicating 7% abv, which indicated that these containers could not
have been brought at the premises.
 General antisocial behaviour would occur a few doors away from the premises
near other licensed premises. Ladbrokes closed at 00:00 and people often
congregated at Ladbrokes.
 He had photos which showed antisocial behaviour and people being arrested
outside Ladbrokes for antisocial behaviour. None of this could be the
responsibility of the premises as the premises was only allowed to sell alcohol

Page 11
under 6% abv.
In response to questions from Members, Mr Stevens, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 There were obvious issues of criminality in the area and this was clear from
many photographs taken on a series of days. One staff member had taken a
video recording and was abused for taking it.
 The individual who did not have the right to work in the UK had produced false
documents in order to falsify his identity.
At this point in the proceedings, the Licensing Manager Ms Bina Patel informed the SubCommittee that although there had been some issues regarding communication via email,
the Licensing team had requested that these papers be delivered by mail. However, they
were never received. The documents submitted in the agenda papers were the sum-total
of the papers that had been submitted regarding the application and anything subsequent
to the paperwork in the agenda papers had not been seen by the Licensing team.
In response, Mr Stevens stated that the Licensing team had trouble receiving emails and
had used his chambers to send the emails to the Licensing Officer but was unable to get
through despite having tried three or four times. He had provided his personal email
address which did not help solve the problem. He then arranged for one of the premises
staff members to go and physically hand deliver the additional papers. These papers
were delivered on 30 January 2019. Attempts had been made to serve the papers on time
but this could not be done due to the problems with emails.
At this point in the proceedings, the Legal Officer stated that he would not be able to
comment on the email problems but there should have been a record of a telephone
dialogue between the Licensing team and the premises licence holder and/or his
representative. He was concerned that he had recalled clearing documents which did not
appear to be present in the agenda papers. He suggested examining the paperwork in Mr
Stevens’ possession to see if they had been originally submitted.
At 8:39pm, the Sub-Committee decided to adjourn the hearing so that the Legal Officer
could examine the additional papers presented at the hearing by the premises licence
holder’s representative. The Sub-Committee reconvened at 8:51pm.
The Legal Officer stated that he had examined the documents referred to by Mr Stevens
and they had not been originally submitted to him for clearance. The Licensing team had
stated that they had not seen these additional papers and although he had seen the
receipt for the documents apparently posted by premises licence holder in December
2018, he had not seen what these emails contained. The document submitted by Mr
Stevens should be considered as late documentation and the Sub-Committee would be
able to allow for the documentation to be submitted at this meeting should they wished to
and with the permission of all parties involved in application.
The Sub-Committee sought the views of all parties involved in the application and decided
to not allow the documentation to be submitted to the meeting.
In response to further questions from Members, Mr Stevens, informed the Sub-Committee
that:
 The individual working at the premises who did not have the right to work in UK
provided documents from the Home Office, which appeared to give him refugee
status and general clearance for his allowance to work in the UK. Supporting
documentation for this could be found on page 131 of the agenda papers.
 Paragraph 2 on page 132 the agenda papers showed the letter from the Home
Office which showed the name of the individual “Zamaryali Saffi” had been

Page 12
naturalised in August 2018. It was this identity that the individual, who did not
have the right to work in the UK, had assumed.
 Page 135 provident of the agenda papers showed that the premises licence
holder had queried when the individual had started working in the UK.
 The individual’s name was consistent with the name that had been given to the
Police (the same name as the papers from the Home Office).
 The individual only received training without pay (but would be paid £7.50 p/h
for the training once his documents had been cleared). He had been trained by
‘Daniel’.
 The agenda papers referring to the case in East Lindsey, Lincolnshire, with
regard to taking advantage of vulnerable people did not apply in this case. In
this case the opposite had occurred. This was an example of an individual who
had arrived at the premises using someone else’s identity. It was the individual
who had taken advantage of the employer.
 Action had been taken by the Police against the employer and action had been
taken with regard to the individual who had presented documents claiming to be
the individual named on the papers.
 He would suggest additional conditions be placed on the licence such as the
implementation of a system ascertaining proof of right to work in the UK for any
individual and that any prospective employees of the premises be fully checked.
He would also suggest that all prospective employees get a Police check.
 The documents provided by the individual were not fraudulent by themselves
but were presented fraudulently.
 Page 140 of the agenda papers showed a photograph of the individual. The
individual was providing a false name and his actual name was Jalal Abdul.
 The individual when presenting his documents did not show a photo. His
responsibilities whilst he was training was to stack shelves. He was never paid
but would have been paid had he produced a passport.
 The individual was training but would not have been paid unless he was able to
produce full documentation regarding his right to work in the UK.
 The situation in this case was different to a situation where advantage could be
taken of a vulnerable person.
 No action had been taken by the Home Office, implying that the premises
licence holder had acted in good faith.
 Additional conditions had been imposed by the Sub-Committee in 2013. The
conditions included the selling of alcohol with low ABV content. Street drinkers
were not interested in this type of alcohol.
 The premises had received a warning in July 2016, but the premises licence
holders were not given a plan by the Licensing team from which they could
work.
 In relation to the test purchase on 20 October 2018, the purchase had occurred
at 01:30 and the employee was tired at the time. The employee had not yet
received his training and had only been at the premises for a short period of
time. He had informed officers that his boss should not be blamed. The
employee had now received his training and the incident would never happen

Page 13
again.
 This review application was not a suitable matter on which to revoke the
premises licence.
 The licence had been reviewed on the basis of public disorder and crime and
disorder but this had only been from alcohol sold by another licensed premises
in the area, likely to be the 24 hour shop.
 The employee who had failed the test purchase had taken on full training
procedures. The subsequent test purchase regarding the sale of the single can
of alcohol was passed and the correct procedure was followed on that occasion.
On this occasion, premises staff had been asked about the possession of the
bottle opener and he had photographs of bottles of coke sold by the premises
needing a bottle opener.
At this point in the proceedings, Mr Stevens requested to circulate the pictures of the
bottles of Coke. The representative for the applicant, Ms Pooley, stated that the photos
showed a line of six bottles, four of which were types of Coca-Cola. These bottles would
require a bottle opener if it was being sold.
In response to further questions from Members, Mr Stevens, informed the Sub-Committee
that:
 He had taken the photos on 30 January 2019 to show the different types of coke
sold at the premises.
 The Stanley-type blades were used to cut boxes that arrived at the premises
sealed with sellotape in addition to dozens of boxes food tins and other general
process items.
 The premises had a store room.
 Deliveries arrived at the front and back of the premises.
 The Stanley-type blades were kept at the front of the premises and in the store
room. They were not kept anywhere else.
 The piece of wood kept at the premises was used as a barrier to stop coins and
other items dropping under the floorboards.
 The refusals register shown by premises staff to responsible authorities was the
incorrect one. The counter had a downward shelf in which various documents
had been stored including other refusals registers. When one of the staff
members attempted to produce the refusal register, he had produced an older
one.
 He had informed the premises licence holder to only have one refusals register
instead of all of them on the shelf. There were some areas of a lack of
understanding of the English language amongst staff members.
 There appeared to be four refusals registers stored in total; 2016, 2017, 2018
and 2019.
 Although all the relevant staff had completed their training, this did not make
them highly intellectual people. They were ordinary shop staff.
 Some of the entries in the refusals register had been re-written from other
registers.

Page 14
 Mr Sultan had worked at the premises on two separate occasions. There was a
period of time when he did not work for the premises. This was between a time
period of 8, 6 or 4 months.
 Some of the discrepancies in the application process (to work at the premises)
was as a result of the prospective employees speaking English as a second
language.
 It was not possible to explain why the letters from both Mr Sultan and Mr
Yemani (page 166 of the agenda papers) appeared to be identical as the
premises licence holder was the one to whom the letters were handed.
 The premises licence holder could not remember when exactly Mr Sultan
stopped working at the premises.
 The blade on the ‘Stanley’ type knife was one which one would push out of the
handle.
 All staff members were now fully trained and the premises licence holder had
paid for all the training courses.
 In relation to the test purchase on 20 October 2018, the employee involved in
this exchange had been a member of staff for approximately two months on and
off. The individual was not selling alcohol regularly and although all other staff
members had been appropriately trained, there had been a delay in his training.
He had apologised for his error.
 The training involved employees to go on courses.
The applicant was recalled to address matters arising. In response to further questions
from Members, Ms Pooley, informed the Sub-Committee that:
 Regardless of what documents the premises licence holder was provided with,
there were no checks made to ensure that the individual who was employed
had the right to work in the UK. This demonstrated the ineffectual running of the
premises and recruiting employees appropriately was one of the core licensing
objectives.
 She could not confirm if the Home Office guidance required the premises
licence holder to obtain a photo of a prospective employee, but a responsible
premises licence holder would take photographic evidence.
 The refusal register appeared to be in sequential order. Three quarters of the
refusal registers kept by the till had not been filled in.
 The refusal on 26 October 2018 appeared to be absent and was not in the
refusals register.
 She accepted that Mr Sultan had appeared to stop working at the premises for a
period of time.
 The application and the premises licence needed to be examined in a broad
context. The refusals register was not simply a case of one or two things
missed. There were also problems with training and the general background of
the premises of not complying with the conditions imposed on the licence.
 It was not clear what additional conditions could be placed to remedy the
upkeep of a logbook.

Page 15
The Legal Officer reminded the Sub-Committee that it had been told that the Home Office
had decided not to take action regarding the matter in relation to the individual who did not
have the right to work in the UK. However, the Sub-Committee had not received any
evidence for this. All that could be said was that no action had been taken at present.

Adjournment and Decision
At 10.01pm, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the Legal
adviser and clerk to deliberate in private. The Sub-Committee had heard and considered
representations from all those who spoke.
Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open to them and the need
for any decision to be proportionate. The Sub-Committee decided to grant the application
and revoke the premises licence.
RESOLVED: To grant the application and revoke the premises licence.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to
grant the application and revoke the premises licence.
Full written reasons would follow in due course.
5

CONSIDERATION OF AN OBJECTION FOR A TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE
Special circumstances justifying urgent consideration
A meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee has been convened as a result of an objection
raised by Public Protection regarding a Temporary Event Notice (TEN). Section 105 (2)(a)
(of the Licensing Act 2003 [part5]) required a minimum of two days’ notice to be given.
The first event was due to take place on 10 February 2019.
The Chair was of the opinion that although the meeting has not been convened with at
least five clear days’ notice, it should proceed as a matter of urgency to consider the
objections to the TEN because of the special circumstances of the need to comply with
the statutory requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.

5a

THE SUGAR BAR , 91 NORWOOD HIGH STREET, LONDON, SE27 9JS (GIPSY HILL)
This application was withdrawn from the agenda.

The meeting ended at 10:16pm
CHAIR
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Tuesday 26 February 2019
Date of Despatch: Wednesday 13 February 2019
Contact for Enquiries: Nazyer Choudhury
Tel: 020 7926 0028
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: nchoudhury@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk
The action column is for officers' use only and does not form a part of the formal record.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 17

Agenda Item 4

Licensing Sub-Committee 12th March 2019

Licensing Application for the Grant/Variation/Review/ of Premises Licences:
1. Bagel World, 516 Brixton Road, London SW9
2. ZB Retail 24, 41 Streatham Hill London SW2 4TP
Report authorised by: Bayo Dosumu: Interim Strategic Director for Resident Services
Contact for enquiries: Bina Patel, Licensing Manager, Public Protection and Regulatory Services, 020
7926 4103, bpatel@lambeth.gov.uk
Executive summary
This report sets out details of applications for the grant of premises’ licences on which representations
have been submitted by interested parties or details of applications for a review of a premises licence.
Recommendation
That the application set out in the Appendix to this report be considered having regard to the Council's
Licensing Policy, the Licensing Objectives and the representation(s) received.

Consultation
Name of
consultee

Directorate or
Organisation

Jonathan Melnick
and Jean-Marc
Moocarme

Date sent to
consultee

Date response
received from
consultee

Comments
appear in report
(paragraph(s))

22.01.19

22.01.19

N/A

Report history
Authorised by
Executive Member

Date report drafted

Report deadline

Date report sent

22.01.19

22.01.19

23.01.19

Appendices
1. Bagel World, 516 Brixton Road, London SW9
2. ZB Retail 24, 41 Streatham Hill London SW2 4TP

Page 18

1.

Context

1.1

A licence from the Council is required for the supply of alcohol, and regulated entertainment.

1.2

A person (including a business) may make an application for a new Premises Licence or a variation
to an existing Premises Licence. Where representations are received a Licensing Sub-Committee
must consider the application. The Sub-Committee, when considering such applications, shall carry
out its function under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view to the Council's Licensing Policy, Statutory
Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives.

2.
2.1

Proposal and Reasons
The Licensing Sub-Committee has responsibility for exercising the Council's powers in respect of
the Licensing Act 2003. Determination by the Committee of the applications appended to this report
is required because representation(s) to the application(s) have been received.

2.2

Details of the application(s) are set out in the Appendix to this report. All statutory consultation
requirements have been complied with by the applicant(s) as set out in paragraph 3 below. The
results of consultation are reported in the appendices relating to each application. Public notice has
been given in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.

2.3

The applicants and persons making representations have been invited to attend the meeting.

2.4

The fees for premises and personal licences are prescribed within the Licensing Act 2003; in the
case of Premises Licences, the fees are based on the business rate of the premises.

3.
3.1

Consultation requirements
The Licensing Act 2003 requires applicants for licences to consult and submit relevant
documentation to the Responsible Authorities as follows:










3.2

Fire Authority;
Health & Safety Section;
Noise Service;
Police;
Public Health
Social Services;
Town Planning; and,
Trading Standards.
Home Office

Applicants are also required to advertise the application by displaying public notices on or near the
premises and by advertising the application in a local newspaper available in the vicinity of premises.
An applicant’s’ failure to comply with all of the above consultation requirements would invalidate the
application. All applications set out in the appendix of this report have complied with the consultation
requirements.

Page 19
4.
4.1

Finance
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

5.
5.1

Legal and Democracy
The licensing of premises for the supply of alcohol, regulated entertainment and late night
refreshment fall within the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

5.2

When considering licence applications the Sub-Committee shall carry out its function with a view to
the Council's Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives. The
Licensing Objectives are:





5.3

the prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;
the prevention of public nuisance; and,
the protection of children from harm.

The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have:





a direct relationship to the promotion of one or more of the 4 licensing objectives;
regard to the statement of licensing policy;
regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance;
there must not be a 'blanket policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of
discretion in each individual case is precluded.

Applications must be considered with regard to the principles of fair process and the Human Rights
Act.
5.4

The purpose of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy is to make clear to applicants and relevant
representatives the considerations that will be taken into account when determining applications. It
is also intended to guide the Licensing Committee when considering licensing applications; however
the Licensing Committee must consider each application on its own merit and only allow exceptions
to its own policy where the circumstances of the application justify it.

5.5

Subject to both the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy and Statutory Guidance having been
properly considered a Sub Committee may depart from them if there are good reasons for doing so.
Full reasons must be given and Sub Committees should be aware that such departures could give
rise to an appeal or judicial review.

5.6

The Statutory Guidance, Chapter 10, states that only necessary, proportionate conditions, which
promote one or more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence if it is granted
(paragraph 10.11). The Licensing Authority may therefore only impose such conditions as are
necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the representations
(paragraph 10.11), and should avoid straying into undisputed areas (paragraph 9.24). Statutory
Guidance also states that the pool of conditions that are supplied by the Secretary of State should
not be applied universally irrespective of particular circumstances, but may be used as examples
that can be tailored to suit individual premises and particular situations.

5.7

When considering an application for the variation of an existing licence only the variation is subject
to determination. No changes can be made to a licence or the conditions attached unless they are
subject to the variation application.

Page 20
5.8

Members are advised that when considering applications to vary an existing licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Part 3, Section 35, paragraphs 3
and 4.
Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the representations
– take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
The steps are:
a.
b.

modify the conditions of the licence (conditions are deemed to be modified if any are altered,
omitted or any new condition added); or,
reject the whole or part of the application

If neither of these steps are taken, the application must be granted.
5.9

Members are advised that when considering applications for a new Premises Licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Chapter 17, Part 3, Section 18
paragraph 4.
Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the representations,
take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The
steps are:
a.

b.
c.
d.

to grant the licence subject to:
i.
the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such extent as the authority
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and
ii.
any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the licence;
to exclude from the scope of the license any of the licensable activities to which the application
relates;
to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; or,
to reject the application.

5.10 When determining an application for a review of a premises licence members may take any of the
following steps they consider necessary to promote the licensing objectives:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

to modify the conditions of the licence;
to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
to remove the designated premises supervisor;
to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
to revoke the licence; or,
to take no action.

5.11 It is considered inappropriate for officers involved in the administration of applications to make
recommendations. However officers from the Responsible Authorities may request conditions be
imposed on a licence and make recommendations with regard to the licensing objectives.
5.12 In accordance with the provisions of Part 1 of Schedule 5 of the Act, where a Licensing Authority
rejects an application for a new premises licence or refuses (in whole or in part) an application to
vary a premises licence the applicant may appeal the decision.
Where the Licensing Authority grants an application for a new premises licence the premises licence
holder can appeal any decision to impose conditions on the premises licence, to exclude a licensable

Page 21
activity from the scope of the premises licence or to refuse to specify a named individual as the
Designated Premises Supervisor.
5.13 Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to an application contends: that the
licence should not have been granted; or that different or additional conditions should have been
imposed on the licence; or that a licensable activity should have been excluded from the scope of
the premises licence; or that the licensing authority should have refused to specify a named
individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor, they may appeal the decision.
Appeals are to be made to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days beginning with the date of notification
of the decision. Further details are set out in the Act.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 23

Agenda Item 4a

Licensing SubCommittee Report
Item No:

1

Title of Report:

Bagel World
516 Brixton Road
London SW9 8EN

Applicant:

Stella Blades

Application Type:

Premises Licence (New application)

Application Date:

3rd December 2018

Ward:

Ferndale

Premises Type:

Takeaway

Policy Context:

Lambeth Statement of licensing policy 2014 -2019

Report Author:

Mrs Pamela Riley

Contact Details:

priley@lambeth.gov.uk

Application
Summary:

This is an application for a Premises Licence (new application)
to allow authorisation for Late Night Refreshment

020 7926 6164

Page 24

Consultation Information:
Department(s) or
Organisation(s)

Consulted (Y/N)

Date Response
Received

Comments
summarized in report
(Y/N)

Internal
Health & Safety Section
Noise Service

Y
Y

No
23.12.18

Social Services

Y

No

Licensing Service

Y

19.12.18

Planning

Y

No

Trading Standards

Y

No

Fire Authority

Y

No

Police Licensing Unit

Y

No

Health Authority

Y

No

Y

Y

External

Policy implications:
Licensing Objectives (chapters 5 to 9, pages 12 to 20 of the policy)
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are;
 The Prevention of Public Nuisance
 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
 Public Safety
 The Protection of Children from Harm
Special Policy Area (chapter 15 and appendix 2, pages 24 and 31of the policy)
The premises is not located in the Cumulative Impact Zone.
Hours policy (chapter 4 and appendix 1, pages 11 to 12 and 29 to 35 of the policy)
The premises is classified within Lambeth’s Licensing Policy (the Policy) as a Takeaway
The applicant proposes to operate the premises as a Takeaway. The Policy recommends a
terminal hour of 00:00 hours on Sunday, 01:00 on Monday to Thursday and 02:00 hours
on Friday and Saturday for premises of this kind in the Major Town Centre area.
Note: The hours above are not absolute and are intended as a guide for applicants to
consider when completing their operating schedules. Each application will be considered on
its own merits. Applicants seeking hours later than those indicated in the Policy should
provide detailed evidence as to why their application will not have a negative impact on the
licensing objectives.

Page 25

1. Application:
1.1

This is an application for a Premises Licence (new application) under section 17 of the
Licensing Act 2003

1.2

An application is seeking authorisation for the following licensable activities:
Late Night Refreshment
Monday - Sunday

23:00 - 05:00

It is proposed to open the premises to the public during the following times:
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00

A copy of the application is attached to this report as Annex A
A copy of the plans are attached to this report as Annex B

2. Representations:
2.1

2.2

Representations were received against the application from the Licensing Authority, and
the Public Protection Department were based on all four of the licensing objectives.

The responsible authorities are concerned that the application if granted will
exacerbate public nuisance in the area as a result of anti-social behaviour,
littering by the premises. They are also concerned that the application if
granted will have a negative impact on the area as a result of an increase in
crime related incidents.
Redacted copies of the representation were provided to the applicant’s representative
and are attached to this report as Annex C.
The last date for making representations was 17th December 2018

3. Current Licence:
3.1 This is a new application for a late night refreshment venue wishing to trade 24 hours a
day.

Page 26

4. Background History:
4.1

The premises was previously licensed for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the
premises since November 2005. This licence was surrendered in November 2018
following the closure of the business.

4.2

An application for a new premises licence was submitted on 26th November 2018.
Following the end of the consultation period the applicants had been found to be
providing licensable activities without a valid premises licence.

4.3

On 20th January 2019 a fight occurred inside Bagel World in the early hours of Sunday
morning the police attended the premise with regards to a report of an assault. The
Metropolitan police have provided a Section 9 Witness Statement with further details of
the assault.
Copies of the Section 9 Statements have been provided and are attached to this report
as Annex D.

4.4

On 31st January 2019 following tasking visit to the premises a test purchase was done
and the premises was found to be trading without a valid premises licence. PPRS have
provided a Section 9 Witness Statement confirming hot food and drink was sold without
a valid premises licence.

4.5

A further tasking visit to the premises was done on 6th February, the premises was
found to be trading again without a valid premises licence. PPRS have provided a
Section 9 Witness Statement confirming hot food and drink was sold without a valid
premises licence.
Copies of the Section 9 Statements have been provided and are attached to this report
as Annex E.

4.6

Following the test purchases the Licensing Department wrote to the applicant advising
them of the breaches that had occurred.
A copy of the letter has been submitted as been provided and are attached to this report
as Annex F

4.7

On 1st February 2019 a late Temporary Event Notices (TEN’s) was submitted online.
The date of TEN’s was for 9th - 10th February. This TEN’s was objected to by the Police
and a counter notice served on 1st February.
Copies of the representation were provided to the applicant’s representative and are
attached to this report as Annex G.
The premises is located on a double redline route area. It is a short walking distance
from Brixton underground and over-ground train station and there are several day
and night bus routes from the premises.

Page 27

5. Observations:
5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) which are particularly relevant to this
application and the representations received are Chapters:
2 – The Licensing Objectives;
3 – Licensable Activities;
8 – Applications for Premises Licences;
9 – Determining Applications;
10 – Conditions Attached to Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates;

5.2

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are particularly relevant to this
application and the representations are Sections:
5. The Licensing Objectives
6. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
7. Public Safety
8. Prevention of Public Nuisance
9. Protection of Children from Harm
16. Applications
Appendix1 – Preferred Hours
Appendix 3 - Major, District and Local Town Centres
and South Bank Strategic Cultural Area
Appendix 4 – Premises Types
Appendix 6 – Applications
Appendix 7 – Crime and Disorder
Appendix 8 – Public Safety
Appendix 9 – Public Nuisance
Appendix 10 – Protection of Children from Harm

6. Conclusion:
6.1

Members are required to consider the application in light of all the relevant information,
and if approval is given, may attach such conditions appropriate to promote the licensing
objectives.

6.2

The options available to Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are;
1 – Grant the application as it currently stands.
2 – Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
3 – Reject the application.

Page 28

Appendices:
Annex A – Application
Annex B – Plan
Annex C – Representation against the application
Annex D – Section 9 Statements Metropolitan Police
Annex E – Section 9 Statements PPRS
Annex F – Licensing warning Letter
Annex G – Tens Application
Reference Documents:
Local Government Act
1972 – Access to
information documents
used in the preparation of
this report

1 The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”)
2 Amended Guidance issued under Section 182 of the
Licensing
Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the Guidance”)
3 Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2014 (“the Policy”)

Annex
A
Page
29

Lambeth
Application for a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
licensing@lambeth.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 7926 6108

* required information

Section 1 of 21
You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.
System reference

Not Currently In Use

Your reference

534

This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.
You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.
Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?
Yes

No

Applicant Details
* First name

STELLA

* Family name

BLADES

* E-mail
Include country code.

Main telephone number
Other telephone number

Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Is the applicant:
Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader
Applying as an individual

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means the
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

Applicant Business
Is the applicant's business
registered in the UK with
Companies House?

Yes

No

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

Registration number

11543032

Business name

BAGEL WORLD LTD

If the applicant's business is registered, use
its registered name.

NONE

Put "none" if the applicant is not registered
for VAT.

VAT number
Legal status

-

Private Limited Company

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 30
Continued from previous page...

Applicant's position in the
business

DIRECTOR

Home country

United Kingdom

The country where the applicant's
headquarters are.

Registered Address

Address registered with Companies House.

Building number or name
Street
District
City or town
County or administrative area
Postcode
Country

Agent Details
* First name

NIRA

* Family name

SURESH

* E-mail
Include country code.

Main telephone number
Other telephone number
Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Are you:
An agent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader
A private individual acting as an agent

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.

Agent Business
Is your business registered in
the UK with Companies
House?

Yes

No

Registration number

09036487

Business name

ARKA LICENSING CONSULTANTS LTD

VAT number
Legal status

-

NONE
Private Limited Company

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.
Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Page 31
Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business

LICENSING AGENT

Home country

United Kingdom

The country where the headquarters of your
business is located.

Agent Registered Address

Address registered with Companies House.

Building number or name
Street
District
City or town
County or administrative area
Postcode
Country

Section 2 of 21
PREMISES DETAILS
I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.
Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
Address

OS map reference

Postal Address Of Premises
Building number or name

516

Street

BRIXTON ROAD

District
City or town
County or administrative area BRIXTON
Postcode

SW9 8EN

Country

United Kingdom

Further Details
Telephone number
Non-domestic rateable
value of premises (£)

55,000

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Description

Page 32
Section 3 of 21
APPLICATION DETAILS
In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?
An individual or individuals
A limited company / limited liability partnership
A partnership (other than limited liability)
An unincorporated association
Other (for example a statutory corporation)
A recognised club
A charity
The proprietor of an educational establishment
A health service body
A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act
2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales
A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England
The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales
Confirm The Following
I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves
the use of the premises for licensable activities
I am making the application pursuant to a statutory function
I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative
Section 4 of 21
INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT DETAILS
Applicant Name
Is the name the same as (or similar to) the details given in section one?
Yes

No

First name

STELLA

Family name

BLADES

Is the applicant 18 years of age or older?
Yes

No

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as required.
Select “No” to enter a completely new set of
details.

Page 33
Continued from previous page...

Current Residential Address
Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one?
Yes

No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

Building number or name
Street
District
City or town
County or administrative area
Postcode
Country
Applicant Contact Details
Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one?
Yes

No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

E-mail
Telephone number
Other telephone number
* Date of birth
Documents that demonstrate entitlement to
work in the UK

* Nationality
Add another applicant

Section 5 of 21
OPERATING SCHEDULE
When do you want the
premises licence to start?

01

/

dd

If you wish the licence to be
valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end
dd

12

/

mm

/

2018
yyyy

/
mm

yyyy

Provide a general description of the premises
For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.
THIS PARTICULAR PREMISES HAS BEEN OPERATING AS A OFF LICENCE FOR VERY LONG TIME, INCLUDING 24 HOUR
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 34
Continued from previous page...

ALCOHOL LICENCE UNTIL 2015, THEN UNTIL 2 AM. THE PREMISES HAS NOW BEEN SURRENDERED TO APPLY FOR A NEW
PREMISES LICENCE. THE NEW PREMISES IS A CAFE WITH SPECIALISATION IN BAGEL. THE CAFE DOESN'T COOK, THE READY
MADE FOOD ARE SOLD HOT AND COLD. THE CAFE USES TOASTERS AND MICROWAVE FOR MAKING THE FOOD HOT OR
WARM. THE PREMISES ALSO SERVE COFFEE AND SOFT DRINKS
If 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend the
premises at any one time,
state the number expected to
attend
Section 6 of 21
PROVISION OF PLAYS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing plays?
Yes

No

Section 7 of 21
PROVISION OF FILMS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing films?
Yes

No

Section 8 of 21
PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing indoor sporting events?
Yes

No

Section 9 of 21
PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?
Yes

No

Section 10 of 21
PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing live music?
Yes

No

Section 11 of 21
PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing recorded music?
Yes

No

Section 12 of 21
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 35
Continued from previous page...

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing performances of dance?
Yes

No

Section 13 of 21
PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?
Yes

No

Section 14 of 21
LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
Will you be providing late night refreshment?
Yes

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Page 36
Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY
Start 23:00

End 05:00

Start

End

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or
both?
Indoors

Outdoors

Both

Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

State any seasonal variations
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of late night refreshments at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 15 of 21
SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL
Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?
Yes

No

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT
How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?
Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor
As an attachment to this application
Reference number for consent
form (if known)

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 37
Continued from previous page...

If the consent form is already submitted, ask
the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your
reference'.
Section 16 of 21
ADULT ENTERTAINMENT
Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children
Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

Section 17 of 21
HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 00:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 00:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 00:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 00:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 00:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 00:00

End 00:00

Start

End

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Page 38
Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY
Start 00:00

End 00:00

Start

End

State any seasonal variations
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 18 of 21
LICENSING OBJECTIVES
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)
List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
THE PREMISES OFFER DELICIOUS BAGEL AND HEALTHY FOOD. THERE ARE FEW STAND IN WALL MOUNTED TABLE TO EAT
INDOOR, THE FOOD IS MAINLY A TAKE AWAY HOME FOOD. THE PREMISES HAS BEEN FITTED TO THE HIGH STANDARD, WITH
NEW CCTV CAMERAS IN PLACE.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder
1. A CCTV system shall be installed and maintained at the premises to cover the entrance and internal public areas,
recorded images shall be kept for 31 days and provided to Police or Council Officers, in a useable form, upon request.
2. Ensure that all staff are given regular training in relation to the Licensing Act 2003. Training records will be kept at the
premises and refresher training will be given to all staff as and when necessary.
3. Signage shall be displayed at the premises requesting that customers leave the premises quietly.
4. Ensure an incident book is maintained at the premises to record details of any incidents the nature of which may have
compromised any of the licensing objectives under the Licensing Act 2003. CCTV recording dates & times shall be linked to
incident book entries.
c) Public safety
THE PREMISES WILL FOLLOW GENERAL HEALTH AND SAFETY AND FIRE SAFETY LAW.

d) The prevention of public nuisance
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 39
Continued from previous page...

THERE IS A BIN INSIDE THE SHOP, AND OUTSIDE THE PREMISES TOO. THE PREMISES USES PAPER BASED DRAPPING PAPERS,
ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY.

e) The protection of children from harm
NOT APPLICABLE, NO ALCOHOL

Section 19 of 21
NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 40
Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:
•
does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
•
is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.
Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this by providing with this application
copies or scanned copies of the following documents (which do not need to be certified).
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

•

An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

•

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.
A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•
•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

•

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least one of the holder’s
parents or adoptive parents, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 41
Continued from previous page...

•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

•

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

•

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 17(3) or 18A
(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2006, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

•

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

•

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

•
•

evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,
evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
•
evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(i)
working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii)
self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii)
studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv)
self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.
Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.
If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.
Section 20 of 21
NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 42
Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

•

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

•

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

•

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

•

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

•

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

o
o
o
o

o

•

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 43
Continued from previous page...

•

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

•

Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:
any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;
any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;
any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and
any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

o
o
o
o

Section 21 of 21
PAYMENT DETAILS
This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.
Please enter the total fee amount payable in the red box at the end of this section.
Application fees are determined by the non-domestic rateable value of the licensed premises. You can find out the current
rateable value of your premises using the Valuation Office Agency's search engine at http://www.2010.voa.gov.uk/rli/
Band | Rateable Value | Application fee amount
========================================================= A | Not rated, or up to £4,300 | £100.00 B |
From £4,301 to £33,000 | £190.00 C | From £33,001 to £87,000 | £315.00 D | From £87,001 to £125,000 | £450.00 # E | £125,001
or greater | £635.00 #
# Premises in bands D or E used primarily for the consumption of alcohol on the premises are subject to fee multipliers,
requiring fees of £900.00 or £1,905.00 respectively.
Premises undergoing construction or redevelopment are treated as if they were in Band C for fee purposes.
Premises Licences for large capacity events will require payment of an additional fee, based upon the number of people
permitted to attend the event at any time. The additional fee must be added to the relevant fee in the above table:
Licensed capacity | Additional fee amount ====================================== 5,000 to 9,999 | £1,000.00
10,000 to 14,999 | £2,000.00 15,000 to 19,999 | £4,000.00 20,000 to 29,999 | £8,000.00 30,000 to 39,999 | £16,000.00 Please
contact us for larger capacities.
Certain community premises, including church halls, chapel halls, village halls, community centres and schools and colleges,
which are only licensed for entertainment and NOT alcohol or late night refreshment, may be exempt from licensing
application and annual fees. Please contact us to discuss whether your premises will fall within this exemption.
* Fee amount (£)

190.00

DECLARATION
1

*

I understand that I must now advertise my application, and that if I do not comply with this requirement my application
will be rejected.

*

I/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the
Licensing Act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

1

1

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I
understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I
*
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my
licence will become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).
1

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or
* her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, if
appropriate (please see note 15)

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 44
Continued from previous page...
1

PLEASE NOTE: The applicant is now required to advertise this application, by displaying a statutory notice at or near the
premises (which must remain visible and legible from outside the premises at all times, for the next 28 days), and by
*
arranging for the publication of a notice in a local newspaper (for one issue within the next 10 working days). Templates
for these notices are available from the licensing authority.
Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration
This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”
* Full name

NIRA SURESH

* Capacity

LICESNING AGENT

* Date

16
dd

/

11
mm

/

2018
yyyy

Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following:
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/lambeth/apply-1 to upload this file and continue
with your application.
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.
IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION
IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE
IS DISQUALIFIED

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 45
OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number

534

Fee paid
Payment provider reference
ELMS Payment Reference
Payment status
Payment authorisation code
Payment authorisation date
Date and time submitted
Approval deadline
Error message
Is Digitally signed
1

2

3

4

5

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

6

7

8

9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

Next >

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 47
Annex B

gc,eu g,'oYLL$
5tG BArkrfi)ru t?-oa$
B

!-oh,rlor.s S'Wq fgN

Sc-r+r-r 1-itoo
A I

M nr r., gt rf(CB

Af

Cl

I CuSf$wlCfL.W$\rtNA, A rLEA

C i S*ueE

CounrTtLf?,

0

'

E_

', F 0l Dq €,

ii os

F i

S

Or S Pc*3*gAgl_N s''frS

broe rc \N)a SrrRf,FtCe5

F ", M lcebur* Uq I oo eegc mftC$tNR
tt
.3".i l< C*\+t.,{ fAfLE A

\+l Sr w( trNrTS
!

*

:

T

I
I

N o futc
s

r

{"F r C*", spn c_8,

k I StefHF

L:

rr,en. Sct1L1g.,4{R,

flstJrur-

ro\LeT *srrrrt<,

lr4 '. ttteq Ex rf

$$r-f*3

Rx

n*q

N t uM$Crt s**r,tts

ur.t

t.te.cs

&qsrlt,

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 49
Annex C

Bagel World, 516 Brixton Road, London, SW9 8EN
As a responsible authority under section 13(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under the
Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Licensing Authority have considered your
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how the
premises would promote the following Licensing Objectives:


Public Nuisance



Prevention of Crime & Disorder



Public Safety



Protection of Children from Harm

Cumulative Impact Area (Saturation Zone)
The premises is not located within the Clapham High Street Cumulative Impact Area as identified
within the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy (‘The Policy’) on pages 30-31
Classification of Area within the policy
Appendix 1 page 30 of the Policy describes the premises as a café. The premises is located on
Brixton Road which is classified as a major Town Centre. Therefore the terminal hour
recommended in the Policy for premises falling within a major Town Centre is, Monday to
Thursday until 01:00, Friday to Saturday until 02:00 and Sunday to 00:00
The application seeks to permit the following licensable activity and operating hours:
Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Sunday

23:00 - 05:00

Hours premises are open to the public
Monday to Sunday 00.00 to 00.00 (24hours)

Operational Schedule
The licensing authority notes that the operating schedule contains very little information, and it is our
view that these do not go far enough especially in relation to promoting the licensing objectives
Notwithstanding the above, Appendix 1 of the Council’s Licensing Policy stated, for applications
that fall within the hours shown in Appendix 1 there is no presumption that these hours will be
granted. An appropriate operating schedule is still required and representations may still be made.
Only if no representations are received will the licence be granted as applied for without being
determined by the Licensing Sub-Committee.

Page 50

Steps to promote the licensing objectives (Ref: Revised guidance under s 182 Licensing Act 2003
issued April 2018, “In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to
the statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations of the
licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge of their local area when
describing the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives. Licensing authorities
and responsible authorities are expected to publish information about what is meant by the
promotion of the licensing objectives and to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about
these matters. However, applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the
area in which the premises are situated to inform the content of the application
It is a common occurrence premises that provide Late Night Refreshment can lead to ASB, which is
a public nuisance, creates unsafety for the public and causes crime and disorder in an area where
the applicant is proposing to sell/deliver late night refreshment at the above times stated.
If this premises are going to operate in an area with these concerns, they will need to be able to
demonstrate how they will uphold all the licensing objectives.

Summary
The applicant has offered a limited operating schedule and therefore the Licensing Authority has
made this representation to seek a more robust Operating Schedule to uphold the Licensing
Objectives.
If the Committee is minded to grant the application, it is the view of the Council’s Licensing
Authority that the provision of LNR be in line with the Policy, namely, Sunday to Thursday 23:00
and Friday to Saturday 00:00.
The following conditions are proposed by the Licensing Authority as those appropriate to uphold
the Licensing Objectives. These conditions are to replace those offered by the applicant within the
operating schedule of their application.
1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and exit
points must be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in a light
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises are open. All
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping.
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or
authorised officer of Lambeth Council
2. A staff member from the premises who is able to operate the CCTV system shall be in the
premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be able to
provide a Police or authorised council officer or UK Border Agency copies of recent CCTV
images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested and within a maximum
of 24 hours of the initial request.
3. Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the premises will
ensure that key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV, and will be able to
download selected footage onto a disk/USB Stick for the Police or authorised officers of the
Local authority or UK Border Agency without difficulty, delay or charge.

Page 51

4. Any CCTV breakdown or system failure will be notified to the Police and Local Authority
immediately & remedied as soon as practicable. Repair records / invoices shall be kept on
site for at least 12 months and be readily available to be viewed by all authorised persons
upon request.
5. All staff member should be checked to ensure they have the right to work in the UK. These
checks should be made available upon requests to all responsible authorities
6. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs
of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly
7. An incident log shall be kept at the premises and retained for a period of 12 months and
made available on request to an authorised officer of Lambeth Council or the
Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
(a) all ejections of patrons
(b) any complaints received
(c) any incidents of disorder
(d) any faults in the CCTV system
(e) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
8. Anyone who appears to be drunk or intoxicated shall not be allowed entry to the premises
and those who have gained entry will be escorted from the building immediately.
9. There shall be no alcoholic drinks allowed on the premises. Customers shall not be allowed
to enter the premises with alcoholic drinking vessels or to consume alcohol on the
premises.
10. The licence holder shall ensure that any queue to enter the premises which forms outside
the premises is orderly and supervised by the Duty Manager so as to ensure that there is
no public nuisance or obstruction to the public highway.
11. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30
minutes before the scheduled collection times.
12. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be swept
and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the
approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business.
The applicant is requested to consider the above conditions and amend the hours sought for the
LNR in line with our Policy, Monday to Thursday 23:00 to 01:00 and Friday to Saturday 23:00 to
02:00 and Sunday 23:00 to 00:00.and to reduce the hours of opening so that the premises closes
Monday to Thursday 01:00, Friday to Saturday 02:00 and Sunday 00:00.
Subject to the above agreement and the premises agreeing a suitable opening time, the Licensing
Authority may consider withdrawing its representation.

Bina Patel,
Licensing Manager
London Borough of Lambeth,

Page 52

Memo To: Mrs Pamela Riley

At: Lambeth Licensing

From: Mr. Henry Umeh

Date: 23rd December 2018

Pages including this one: 3
Our Ref:

18/17002/LICAPP

Your Ref: 18/00228/PRMNEW - Prem2178

Subject: LICENSING ACT 2003 – Application for Premises Licence (new application)

Dear Mrs. Riley,

Lambeth Public Protection Team, a responsible authority for the purposes of the Licensing Act
2003 hereby makes representation with regards to an application for a premises license made
by Stella Blades, via a licensing agent, for Bagel World Ltd located at 516 Brixton Road,
London SW9 8EN. This representation is made in accordance with the licensing objectives of
Preventing Public Nuisance, Preventing Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and Protection of
Children from Harm.

Bagel World seeks to operate as a café specializing in bagels. They are proposing to operate
a take away service with a few standing wall mounted tables to cater for indoor eating for its
customers. The establishment will also be providing late night refreshment and is seeking to
provide the service as follows
Late Night Refreshment
Monday - Sunday

23:00 - 05:00

The business also seeks to operate 00:00hrs to 00:00hrs, Monday – Saturday which implies
they will be open 24 hours a day. This premises is situated beside McDonald’s in the heart of
Brixton Town Centre which, as a major town centre, has a very active night time economy and
experiences a significant amount of criminal activity, enviro-crime such as littering as well as
anti-social behaviour. The Town Centre has a considerable number of residential properties

London Borough of Lambeth
Public Protection & Regulatory Services
3rd Floor, Civic Centre

Telephone 020 7926 5000

6 Brixton Hill

www.lambeth.gov.uk

London SW2 1EG
Page 1

Page 53

within it and is also a major transport hub for buses, trains and the London underground which
operates a 24hr service on Fridays and Saturdays.

It is our view that granting Bagel World a license to provide late night refreshment until 05:00
daily would only serve to encourage even more members of the public to loiter around the
town centre thereby increasing the risk of public nuisance, littering, and could further lead to
an increase in crime in the local area. Additionally, Lambeth Public Protection Team further
objects to the proposed licensing hours applied for by Bagel World as these times are in
contradiction with the licensing hours set out in Appendix 1 of the authority’s current licensing
policy which identifies Brixton as a major town centre and recommends terminal hours of
01:00 (Friday - Saturday) and 00:00 (Sunday - Thursday) for such establishments.

Furthermore, the applicant hasn’t provided detailed information on how they will promote the
Public Safety licensing objective other than stating “The premises will follow general Health &
Safety and Fire Safety law”. The responsible authority also disagrees with the applicant’s
submission on the Protection of Children from Harm licensing objective. The applicant
appears to assume that this objective isn’t relevant as the premises will not be providing
alcohol for sale but there are other factors a license holder should consider, such as child
safeguarding/protection.

In light of the above reasons we would ask that the committee, if it is minded to, considers
granting a license to Bagel World that adheres to the council’s current licensing policy. We
also ask the committee to consider adding following conditions.

1. SIA security personnel for the premises should be present daily from 23:00 until the
terminal hour.

2. To undertake daily routine litter picking of the immediate vicinity of the premises to
remove restaurant associated litter such as food packaging, cups and cigarette butts,
ensuring a last litter pick is done at the terminal hour.
London Borough of Lambeth
Public Protection & Regulatory Services
3rd Floor, Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill

Telephone 020 7926 5000

London SW2 1EG

Facsimile
www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 2

Page 54

3. The business should have a clear and effective dispersal policy to discourage loitering
and prevent public nuisance.

23/12/2018

X
Henry Umeh
Principal Public Protection Officer
Signed by: Umeh,Henry

London Borough of Lambeth
Public Protection & Regulatory Services
3rd Floor, Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill

Telephone 020 7926 5000

London SW2 1EG

Facsimile
www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 3

Page 55
RESTRICTED (when complete)

Annex D

MG11C

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B
URN
Statement of: PC Hannah Eldridge 1300AS
Age if under 18: Over 18

(if over 18 insert ‘over 18’)

Occupation: Police Constable

This statement (consisting of
page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in
it anything which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true.
Witness Signature: …………………………………………………………....

Date: 26th February 2019

On 25th February 2019 I received an email from Bina PATEL the local authority licensing manager asking for
any further details in relation to the assault that took place at Bagel World Brixton Road.
I am a police officer of 14 years working in the licensing team as part of the partnership and prevention team for
AS BOCU.
In relation to this investigation the victim has approached the shop, Bagel World, where the suspects were
eating their food. The main suspect, who has not been identified, has left followed by suspect 2. When they
went outside, the unidentified suspect has punched the victim once which has knocked him out and caused him
to hit his head on the pavement. He received a bleed on his brain and was critical. He is now out of hospital;
however, the recovery could take a year.
Suspect 2 has then hit the second victim a couple of times causing minor injuries.
The suspects were known to the workers in bagel world. Before the incident suspect 2 was seen cuddling one
of the workers and giving her kitchen towels. The owner was originally reluctant to show the footage (can be
seen on the officers BWV) however the owner did eventually show the officer on the scene.
The crime scene was kept in place to get the CCTV downloaded as the victim’s condition was critical and the
officer in the case was concerned the footage would have been lost if the owner was allowed access to the
system.
At this stage only one suspect has been identified however it is believed the suspect arrested and the staff
know who the main suspect is.

Witness Signature: …………………………………………………………................................................................
Signature Witnessed by Signature:…………………………………………………………........................................
Page 1 of 1
99/12

RESTRICTED (when complete)

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 57
Annex E

STATEMENT OF WITNESS
(CJ Act 1967, s9; MC Act 1980, ss5A (3) (a) and 5B, MC Rules 1981, r70)
Statement of:

Nicholas Anderson-Cottee

Occupation of Witness:

Public Protection Officer

Address:

Lambeth Council, PO Box 734, Winchester, SO23 5DG

Age of Witness:

Over 18

This statement, consisting of two page/s signed by me, is true to the best of my
knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be
liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it anything which I know to be false, or do
not believe to be true.
Signature:

Date: 01/02/2019

My name is Nicholas Anderson-Cottee; the LONDON BOROUGH OF LAMBETH
employs me as a Public Protection Officer, my duties include the enforcement
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.
On the 31st January 2019, I was on a night shift with my colleague William Olando. As
part of my duties, I was tasked that night to visit a number of different premises in
relation to various issues. One of these was Bagel World located at 516 Brixton Road,
London, SW9 8EN. This tasking was in relation to licensing issues of the business
allegedly serving hot food and drink after 23:00 hours, which the business is not licensed
to do.
At 23:15 hours by my watch I entered the Bagel World at 516 Brixton Road. I observed
two black males in an back room to the rear of the business, as well as a white male
serving a female. He handed her a paper bag. There were no other customers in the
shop.
The white male was in his mid to late twenties, black hair, somewhat largely built. He
came over to me, and I asked for a jerk chicken meal with rice, and a latte coffee. He
took my order and immediately took a plastic tub from many which were displayed in a
glass counter. He placed this in one of three microwaves, and then went to a coffee
machine and made the latte. Whilst he was doing so, I observed a conveyor type large
toaster which was powered on. I also observed a number of patties as well as cold food
which consisted mainly of bagels and fillings.

Witness:
Signature:

Nicholas Anderson-Cottee
Date: 01/02/2019

Page 58
Continuation Statement of Nicholas Anderson-Cottee

Page 2 of 2

The aforementioned male served the coffee and the meal when it was ready. He asked
me if I wanted to eat in or takeaway and when I acknowledged the latter, he provided a
bag, plastic cutlery and napkins. I paid by debit card, and was given a receipt for my
order, which was date and time stamped. I formally present a copy of said receipt as
Exhibit NA01.
As I started to leave, I asked the same male when the business closed. He stated that
they were open 24 hours on Saturdays and Sundays, and that they normally closed
around 23:00 hours on other days. I thanked him and left.

Witness:
Signature:

Nicholas Anderson-Cottee
Date: 01/02/2019

Page 59

Page 60

Page 61

Page 62

Page 63

Page 64

Page 65

Page 66

Page 67

Page 68

Page 69
Hand Delivery
Your Ref:
Our Ref:

Annex F

1st February 2019
The Occupier/Manager
c/o Stella Blades
Bagel World

516 Brixton Road
London
SW9 8EN
Dear Miss Blades,
LICENSING ACT 2003 – SECTION 136:
SALE OF HOT FOOD AFTER 23:00 WITHOUT A PREMISES LICENCE
It has been brought to our attention that you may be trading i.e. selling hot food or drink (late night
refreshments) after 23:00 without the benefit of a premises licence or a temporary event notice (TENs).
For licensable activities such as late night refreshment you are required to have the proper
authorisation under the Licensing Act 2003. The new grant premises licence that you have submitted is
still yet to be determined and does not entitle you to trade by selling hot food and drink between the
hours of 23:00 and 05:00 all week.
It is an offence to carry out the sale of hot food or drink without the benefit of a premises licence and if
convicted you could be fined or 6 months imprisonment, or both.
We must therefore request that you cease the sale of hot food and drink (namely late night
refreshment) from these premises immediately, until such time as authorisation is in place.
A copy of this letter will be kept on file with and will be used as part of the committee report that will be
submitted for the Licensing subcommittee hearing. In the event of any further breaches they too it will
be referred to as evidence of previous warnings issued.
If you have any queries regarding this matter, please contact me using the details given below.
Yours faithfully

Mrs. Pamela Riley
Licensing Officer
Direct Line: 0207 926 6164
Email: priley@lambeth.gov.uk
London Borough of Lambeth
Public Protection and Regulatory Services
3rd Floor, Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
www.lambeth.gov.uk
Telephone: 0207 926 6108
London, SE24 0AU

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 71

Page 72

Page 73

Page 74

Page 75

Page 76

Page 77
Continued from previous page...

Have you already given a
temporary event notice for
the same premises in which
the event period:
a) Ends 24 hours or
less before; or
b) Begins 24 hours or less
after the event period
proposed in this notice?

Yes

No

Section 8 of 9
ASSOCIATES AND BUSINESS COLLEAGUES (See also guidance on completing the form, note 16)
Has any associate of yours
given a temporary event
notice for an event in the
same calendar year as the
event for which you are now
giving a temporary event
notice?

Yes

No

Has any associate of yours
already given a temporary
event notice for the same
premises in which the event
period:
a) Ends 24 hours or
less before; or
b) Begins 24 hours or less
after the event period
proposed in this notice?

Yes

No

Has any person with whom
you are in business carrying
on licensable activities given a
temporary event notice for an
event in the same calendar
year as the event for which
you are now giving a
temporary event notice?

Yes

No

Has any person with whom
you are in business carrying
on licensable activities
already given a temporary
event notice for the same
premises in which the event
period:
a) Ends 24 hours or less
before; or
b) Begins 24 hours or less
after the event period
proposed in this notice?

Yes

No

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 78

Page 79

Page 80

Memo To: Mrs Pamela Riley

At: Lambeth Licensing

From: Mr. Henry Umeh

Date: 6th February 2019

Pages including this one: 2
Our Ref: 19/01217/LICAPP

Your Ref: TEN 11328

Subject: Application for Temporary Event at 3 Gresham Road, London, SW9 7PH.

Dear Mrs. Riley,

Lambeth Public Protection Team, a responsible authority for the purposes of the Licensing Act
2003 hereby makes an objection with regards to an application for a temporary event notice
(TEN 11328) made by Stella Rosalyne Blades, via Arka Licensing, a licensing agent, for Bagel
World Ltd located at 516 Brixton Road, London SW9 8EN. This objection is made in
accordance with the licensing objectives of Preventing Public Nuisance, Preventing Crime and
Disorder, Public Safety and Protection of Children from Harm.

Bagel World has applied for a temporary event notice to enable the provision of late night
refreshment on its premises from 9th February to 10th February. The hours proposed during
this period are 00:00 to 23:59. The business is relatively a new one in Brixton, having started
operation late 2018. They are described as a café specializing in bagels and have since
submitted an application to Lambeth Licensing for a premises license to provide a late night
refreshment service from 23:00 to 05:00, 7 days a week; this application process is still ongoing. They have also occasionally, in previous months, traded during late hours having
successfully applied for temporary event notices.
Between 24th and 31st January 2019, Bagel World were found to be operating beyond
23:00hrs on 3 occasions. At least, on 2 of those occasions they were found to be providing
late night refreshment without a license or TEN Lambeth. It wouldn’t be unreasonable to think
they were doing the same on the 3rd occasion. Furthermore there was an incident at the
London Borough of Lambeth
Community Safety
3rd Floor, Civic Centre

Telephone 020 7926 5000

6 Brixton Hill

www.lambeth.gov.uk

London SW2 1EG
Page 1

Page 81

Page 82

Page 83

Agenda Item 4b

Licensing SubCommittee Report
Item No:

2

Title of Report:

ZB Retail 24
41 Streatham Hill
London SW2 4TP

Applicant:

Licensing Authority

Application Type:

Premises Licence (review application) (adjourned at 05.02.19
LSC)

Application Date:

3rd December 2018

Ward:

Streatham Hill

Premises Type:

Convenience Store and Off licence

Policy Context:

Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2014 - 2019

Report Author:

Mr Ola Owojori

Contact Details:

020 7926 1649

Application
Summary:

This is an application for the review of the Premises Licence
made under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 by Licensing
Authority following an allegation of employing illegal workers.

oowojori@lambeth.gov.uk

Full details are contained within the application.

1

Page 84
Consultation Information:
Department(s) or
Organisation(s)

Consulted (Y/N)

Date Response
Received

Health & Safety Section

Y

-

Noise Service

Y

-

Social Services

Y

-

Licensing Service

Y

Applicant

Planning

Y

-

Trading Standards

Y

-

Fire Authority

Y

-

Police Licensing Unit

Y

27.12.18

Health Authority

Y

-

Comments
summarized in report
(Y/N)

Internal

External
Y

Policy implications:
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are;
The prevention of public nuisance.
The prevention of crime and disorder.
Complaints, Representations and Licensing Reviews (chapter 19, pages 26 to 28 and 29 of the
policy)
19.6 Representations must relate to particular premises for which a premises licence is already
held and must be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives.
19.8 The licensing committee, in determining a review, may exercise the range of powers given
to them to promote the licensing objectives.
19.10 The Authority will seek to establish the cause or causes of the concern and remedial
action will be targeted at such causes. Any action will be proportionate to the problems
involved.
19.15 Where reviews arise and the Licensing Authority determines that the crime prevention
objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is
expected that the revocation of the licence- even in the first instance - will be seriously
considered (Amended Guidance, paragraph 11.27). Revocation also remains an option
if other licensing objectives are being undermined.

2

Page 85
1. Application
1.1
This is an application to review the premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing
Act 2003. The application was submitted by the Licensing Authority on 3rd December
2018 as they believe illegal workers were employed at the premises.
1.2

The applicant is seeking revocation of the premises licence, as in their opinion, the
premises is being used to further crime.
I can confirm that all statutory requirements were complied with
A copy of the application is attached as Annex A
Supporting witness statements are attached as Annex B

2. Representations:
2.1

Lambeth Police Licensing support the revocation of the premises licence as they believe
the employment of illegal workers undermine the Prevention of Crime and Disorder
licensing objective.

A copy of the representation is attached to the report as Annex C
3. Current Licence:
3.1

The current premises licence is held by Rashid Akhter and Shamim Rashid and the
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is Rashid Akhter. The licence authorises the sale
of alcohol for consumption off the premises on Monday to Saturday from 08:00 to 05:00
hours and on Sunday from 10:00 to 05:30 hours.
A copy of the current premises licence is attached as Annex D

4. Background History:
4.1

The premises licence was first granted in 2005 following an application to convert the
existing Justices’ Off Licence previously held at the premises.

4.2

The premises licence was varied in July 2007 to extend the hours authorised for the
sale of alcohol on Monday to Saturday from 08:00 to 05:00 hours and on Sunday from
10:00 to 05:30 hours. There were representations against the application from two
local residents and submission from the applicant, which were considered by the
Licensing Sub-Committee at a hearing before the application was granted.

4.3

The premises was found to be trading beyond their permitted hours in June 2007 by
licensing officers and also sold alcohol to a child during a test purchase under the
supervision of Trading Standard officers in October 2007.

4.4

The premises licence was transferred to Rashid Akhter and Shamim Rashid in
February 2009 and Mr Akhter has been the DPS since.

4.5

Since Mr Akhter became one of the licence holders and the DPS, an allegation was
made against the premises by a local resident in 2013 that they contributed to littering
and street drinking in the area. A multi-agency licensing inspection of the premises was

3

Page 86
conducted in 2015, which officers found satisfactory. A copy of the inspection
summary and complaint are attached to the report as Annex E

5. Observations:
5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) which are particularly relevant to this
application and the representations received are Chapters:
2 – The Licensing Objectives;
3 – Licensable Activities;
9 – Determining Applications;
10 – Conditions Attached to Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates;
11 – Reviews

5.2

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are particularly relevant to this application
and the representations are Sections:
1.Introduction
5. The Licensing Objectives
6. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
8. Prevention of Public Nuisance
10. Conduct of Licence Holders and DPS
11. Compliance with other Legislation
19. Complaints, Representations and Reviews

6. Conclusion:
6.1

Members are required to consider the application in light of all the relevant information.
The Licensing Sub-Committee may take such steps as are appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives.
The options available to Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are;
1 - To modify the conditions of the licence
2 - To remove a licensable activity from the scope of the premises licence
3 - To remove the designated premises supervisor from the licence
4 - To suspend the premises license for a period of 3 months
5 - To revoke the premises licence

6.2

Where the authority modifies a condition of the licence or removes a licensable activity it
may provide that this takes effect for such period as it may specify (but not exceeding
three months).

Appendices:
Annex A – Application
Annex B – Supporting witness statements
Annex C – Representation in support
Annex D – Premises Licence
Annex E – Inspection report and Complaint

4

Page 87

Reference Documents:
Local Government Act
1972 – Access to
information documents
used in the preparation of
this report

1 The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”)
2 Amended Guidance issued under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the Guidance”)
3 Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2014 – 2019 (“the
Policy”)

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 89

Annex A

London Borough of Lambeth
Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.
I Licensing Authority
(Insert name of applicant)
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below
Part 1 – Premises or club premises details
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

ZB Retail 24
41 Streatham Hill

Post town
London

Post code (if known)
SW2 4TP

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Rashid Akhter and Shamim Rashid

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
Prem385

Part 2 - Applicant details
I am
Please tick  yes
1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)
or (B) below)
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)
3) a member of the club to which this application relates
(please complete (A) below)

X

Page 90

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick  yes
Mr

Mrs

Miss

Surname

Ms

Other title
(for example, Rev)
First names

Please tick  yes
I am 18 years old or over
Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address
Post town

Daytime contact telephone number
E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT
Name and address

Telephone number (if any)
E-mail address (optional)

Post Code

Page 91

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT
Bina Patel
Licensing Manager
London Borough of Lambeth
3rd floor Civic Centre
London
SW2 1EG

Telephone number (if any)
0207926 4103
E-mail address (optional)
bpatel@lambeth.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Please tick one or more boxes 
X

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

The Licensing Authority is seeking a review of the premises licence following the arrest by
Immigration officers of an illegal worker employed and found to be working at the premises
in the early hours of Saturday 3rd November and another employee who has no right to work
in the UK

Page 92

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)
On Friday 2nd and Saturday 3rd November 2018, Officers from Lambeth Council led a joint
Police, Licensing, Public Protection and Immigration operation to inspect off licensed premises
in areas with disproportionate criminal offences that are associated with off licensed premises.
The aim of the operation was to carryout compliance visit to these premises.
ZB Retail 24 is licensed for sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises for 24 hours. The
premises was visited just before 01:30 hours by officers from Lambeth Licensing, the Police
and Public Protection.
Two individuals named as Mr Nasir Hazarbas and Mr Saif Ullah were working at the premises.
Mr Hazarbas’s identity could not be verified as he had no proof of identity on him. Following
compliance checks of licence conditions and good practice, Immigration officers were
requested to carry out further checks on these individuals.
Immigration checks on the individual who claimed to be Mr Hazarbas, confirmed his identity
officer as Rafiullah Nabizada. Immigration checks revealed that he was liable to be removed
from the UK as an illegal entrant to the UK with no right to work and he was arrested by
Immigration officers at the premises
Immigration checks on Mr Ullah revealed that he previously had an entrepreneur visa, which
allowed him to work for himself, but he is not permitted to work for someone else. He currently
has an outstanding application with the Immigration service and has no right to work in the UK.
Mr Ullah was instructed to close the premises and wait for the owner of the premises who was
contacted on the phone and ask to return to the premises.
According to Section 11.26 – 11.28 of the Revised Guidance under section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003;
“Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should be
taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention
objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated problems
may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of the licence holder and the
staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with the conditions attached to the
licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is still empowered to take any
appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with
a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in
the interests of the wider community and not those of the individual licence holder.
11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises
which should be treated particularly seriously. One of which is for employing a person who is
disqualified from that work by reason of their immigration status in the UK.
11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use
the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and
the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined

Page 93

through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence
– even in the first instance – should be seriously considered.
I attach witness statements from Licensing, Police and Immigration officers to support this
application.
Conclusion
Employing an illegal worker is a criminal offence which engages the prevention of crime and
disorder licensing objective and I will therefore request that the premises licence be revoked.

Page 94

Please tick  yes
Have you made an application for review relating to the
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application

Day

Month

Year

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them
None

Page 95

Please tick 
yes
•
•

I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my
application will be rejected

X

X

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION
Part 3 – Signatures (please read guidance note 4)
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
Date
3rd December 2018
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
Capacity Licensing Manager
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)
Licensing Authority
London Borough of Lambeth
3rd floor Civic Centre

Post town
London

Post Code
SW2 1EG

Telephone number (if any) 0207926 4103
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional) bpatel@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 96

Notes for Guidance
1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.
2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.
3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.
4. The application form must be signed.
5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.
6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Annex B

Page 97
RESTRICTED (when completed)

MG 11 (T)

WITNESS STATEMENT
(CJ Act 1967, s.9 MC Act 1980, ss.5A(3)(a) and 5B; MC Rules 1981, r.70)
Statement of:

Mark Elsworthy

Age: (if over 18, put “Over 18) Over 18

Occupation:

Over 18

Immigration Officer 9137

This statement (consisting of: 3 pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I ke it
knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated anything in it which I
know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Signature:

Date:
15/11/2018

M ELSWORTHY

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded

(supply witness details on rear)

On SATURDAY 3rd NOVEMBER 2018 Officers from South London ICE attended the address of RETAIL24, 41
STREATHAM HILL, SW16 4TP. Officers were in FULL PPE. Officers were conducting a joint operation with Licensing
officers and Police to licenced premises.

At approximately 0145 hours I entered the premises. I observed 2 IC4 males stood behind the counter. I spoke with one
male, who initially claimed to be naturalised in the United Kingdom. The male gave false details, before eventually giving
his real name as Rafiullah NABIZADA, 01/01/

AFGHAN male. I arrested NABIZADA as someone liable to be

removed from the UNITED KINGDOM as he is an illegal entrant into the UK with no right to work.

I conducted the following Q and A with NABIZADA, in ENGLISH. NABIZADA had a good understanding of English.

Q: HOW LONG HAVE YOU BEEN WORKING HERE?

A: THREE MONTHS.

Q: WHAT IS YOUR JOB ROLE/WHAT ARE YOUR DUTIES?

A: SERVE CUSTOMERS, STACK SHELVES.

Q: WHAT DAYS/HOURS DO YOU WORK EACH WEEK?

A: TUESDAY TO SUNDAY 0000 TO 0800.

Signature:
2003(1): MG 11(T)

M ELSWORTHY .......................

Signature witnessed by:

N/A ...........................................................

Page 98
RESTRICTED (when completed)
Continuation of Statement of

Page 2 of 3

Mark Elsworthy.......................................................................................................

Q: DO YOU WORK THE SAME HOURS / DAYS EVERY WEEK?

A: YES.

Q: WHO GAVE YOU THIS JOB?

A: THE WIFE OF THE OWNER, SHAMIM.

Q: WHO TELLS YOU WHAT DAYS/HOURS TO WORK?

A: THE MANAGER RASHID AKHTER.

Q: WHO TELLS YOU WHAT TASKS/DUTIES TO CARRY OUT EACH DAY?

A: RASHID AKHTER.

Q: HOW ARE YOU PAID?

A: CASH AND CAN HELP MYSELF TO FOOD AND DRINK.

Q: IF MONEY, HOW MUCH AND HOW DO YOU RECEIVE IT?

A: £6 PER HOUR. CASH IN HAND.

Q: WHO PAYS YOU?

A: THE MANAGER RASHID.

Q: DO YOU PAY INCOME TAX OR HAVE A NATIONAL INSURANCE NUMBER?

A: NO.

Q: WHAT NAME DOES THE EMPLOYER KNOW YOU AS?

A: NASIR.

Q: DID YOU SHOW DOCUMENTS BEFORE BEING OFFERED THE JOB? IF SO WHAT?

Signature:
2003(1)

...................... Mark Elsworthy

Signature witnessed by:

N/A ......................................................

Page 99
RESTRICTED (when completed)
Continuation of Statement of

Page 3 of 3

Mark Elsworthy.......................................................................................................

A: NO, JUST A BANK CARD.

Q: DOES YOUR EMPLOYER KNOW YOU HAVE NO RIGHT TO WORK IN THE UK?

A: NO IDEA. I TOLD HIM I AM ALLOWED TO WORK.

The subject then signed my notebook confirming the above was a true and accurate record of all that was said.

The subject was then given immigration bail to report to the Home Office. At approximately 0250 hours all Officers were
off scene. The subject has failed to attend his initial reporting event.

This concludes my witness statement, my name is MARK ELSWORTHY and I am an IMMIGRATION OFFICER for the
HOME OFFICE. My Warrant number is

I confirm the above is a true and accurate account of all that was said.

MARK ELSWORTHY 15/11/2018, 22:35 hours.

Signature:
2003(1)

...................... Mark Elsworthy

Signature witnessed by:

N/A ......................................................

Page 100

Page 101

Page 102

Page 103

Page 104

Page 105

Page 106

Page 107

Page 108

Page 109

Page 110

Page 111

Page 112

Page 113

Page 114

Page 115

Page 116

Page 117

Page 118

Page 119

Page 120

Page 121

Page 122

Page 123

Page 124

Page 125

Page 126

Page 127

Page 128

Page 129

Page 130

Page 131

Page 132
STATEMENT OF WITNESS
(CJ Act 1967, s9; MC Act 1980, ss5A(3)(a) and 5B, MC Rules 1981, r70)
Statement of:

Calvin McLean

Occupation of Witness: Head of Public Protection & Regulatory Services
Age of Witness:

Over 18

This statement, consisting of 1 page signed by me, is true to the best of my
knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall
be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it anything which I know to be false,
or do not believe to be true.

Signed

Date: 20th November 2018

I am the above named person employed by the London Borough of Lambeth and
have been since 1st October 2012. I am responsible for the delivery of Public
Protection, Enforcement, CCTV and Regulatory Services in the aforementioned
borough.
On Friday 2nd November 2018 I began duty at 9pm assigned to a multi-agency
operation to target anti-social behaviour associated to licensed premises. Throughout
the operation I was in the company of PS35LX David Smith and Thomas Dunn,
Licensing Officer employed by the London Borough of Lambeth
At approximately 1:30am we attended the premises known as “Retail 24”, 41
Streatham Hill, London, SW2 to do a licensing compliance visit.
Upon entering the premises there were two males behind the counter. Thomas Dunn
conducted a number of checks and overall found the premises to be satisfactory.
I spoke with one of the males behind the counter who initially gave his name as Nazir
Hazarbus. I engaged in general conversation with him and asked him about his
immigration status in the UK. He told me that he had been in the UK for 4 years and
was a naturalised British citizen, originally from Afghanistan.
I became suspicious of what he told me and therefore asked for officers from the
United Kingdom Border Agency (UKBA), who were engaged on the same operation
to join us to carry out some further checks.
I also spoke to the other male behind the counter who gave his name as Saif Ullah.
He told me he was born in Pakistan and was in the United Kingdom on an
entrepreneur’s visa.
A short while afterwards were we joined by officers from UKBA who conducted their
checks. At 2:00am I was present when the first male I had spoken to was arrested by
one of the officers for illegal entry into the UK. One of the other officers also relayed
to me that the second male was in breach of his visa requirements, which allow him
to run his own business but do not allow him to be employed, which on this occasion
he clearly was.
At approximately 2:30am we left UKBA officers on site with the two males.

Signed:

Date: 20th November 2018

Page 133
Annex C

LX - Lambeth Licensing & Night
Time Economy Team
Civic Centre,
6 Brixton Hill,
SW2 1EG
27th December 2018
Contact: PC Mike Constable
Miss Bina Patel
Licensing Manager
Lambeth Borough Council

RE: REVIEW OF RETAIL 24, 41 STREATHAM HILL SW2 4TP
Dear Miss Bina Patel,
I write on behalf of the Commissioner of police for the Metropolis to support Lambeth
Council Licensing Authority’s review of Retail 24, on the grounds of the following
Licensing Objectives;



The prevention of public nuisance.
The prevention of crime and disorder.

This review is with regards to two males who were identified by UK Border Agency that
they did not have the authority to work.
Details of these are attached in supporting statements.
The visit was conducted as part of a joint operation with Lambeth Council, Metropolitan
Police Service and UKBA to look at licensed premises this was Operation Autumn
Nights. This was an intelligence led operation conducted by a data analyst from Lambeth
Council with a fully briefing supplied to those involved.
The Metropolitan Police Service would like to remind the committee of three points:
1. S182 Guidance states:
11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed
premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:

for knowingly employing a person who is unlawfully in the UK or who cannot
lawfully be employed as a result of a condition on that person’s leave to enter;

Page 134

2. In the case of East Lindsey District Council v Hanif (2016)
Mr Justice Jay said the restaurateur had "exploited a vulnerable person from his own
community by acting in breach of the criminal law".
"Criminal convictions are not required," he told the court.
3. S182 Guidance states:
11.28 Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime
prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further
crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance –
should be seriously considered.
Further to this, the area suffers with regards to street drinking. The area causes the Safer
Neighbourhoods Team to concentrate a lot of time dealing with this problem.
It is of the Metropolitan Police Service’s opinion that this sort of activity (with regards to
the Immigration offences) leads to fraud on the Revenue, unfair competitive advantage to
the employer and most importantly exploitation of a vulnerable person.
These points should be considered in the decision process for the review of the license of
this premises, and it is recommended that revocation of their premises license is taken.
Yours sincerely,
Mike Constable | PC 596LX - Licensing & Night Time Economy Team | Lambeth Borough
Address Civic Centre, 6 Brixton Hill, SW2 1EG

Page 135
London Borough of Lambeth
Public Protection
2 Herne Hill Road
London
SE24 0AU
Tel: 020 7926 6108

Annex D

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence

Premises Licence Number

05/02154/PRMCON/385

Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including
Post Town, Post Code
Retail 24
41 Streatham Hill
London
SW2 4TP
Telephone number

020 8674 3318

Where the licence is time limited the dates
The opening hours of the premises
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00

-

00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Supply of Alcohol

1

Page 136

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Supply of Alcohol
Christmas Day
Christmas Day
Good Friday
Monday - Saturday
Sunday

12:00
19:00
10:00
08:00
10:00

-

15:00
22:30
22:30
05:00
05:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies
Off supplies only

2

Page 137
Part 2
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence
Rashid Akhter ·& Shamim Rashid
Thornton Heath
Surrey
Telephone contact details:
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol
Mr Rashid Akhter
Thornton Heath
Surrey

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol
Party Reference: 0

Licensing Authority: LB Of Croydon

Signed:……………………
On Behalf of the Head of
Environmental Health
Dated:…………………….

Page 138

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
1

MANDATORY CONDITIONS
1.

No supply of alcohol may be made under this licence:

a)

At a time that there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence;
or
At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

b)
2.

Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.

4

Page 139

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1

GENERAL - ALL FOUR LICENSING OBJECTIVES
EMBEDDED RESTRICTIONS
For the purpose of paragraph 6(8) of Schedule 8 to the Licensing Act 2003 this licence is subject to
the effect of restrictions contained in the Licensing Act 1964, the Children and Young Persons Act
1933, Cinematograph (Safety) Regulations 1955 and the Sporting Events (Control of Alcohol Etc) Act
1985, which include, but may not be limited to, the following:
(1)
Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours.
In this condition, permitted hours mean:
a.

On Monday to Saturday, other than Christmas Day, 8 am to 11pm.

b.

On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10 am to 10.30pm.

c.

On Christmas Day, 12 noon to 3pm and 7pm to 10.30pm.

d.

On Good Friday, 8am to 10.30pm.

The above restrictions do not prohibit:
(a)
during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from the
premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel;
(b)
the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor of
the alcohol so ordered;
(c)

the sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purpose of the trade or club;

(d)
the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale or
supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised mess
of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air forces;
Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or be consumed in the licensed premises.
2

PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
The licensee shall ensure this objective is met.

3

PUBLIC SAFETY
The licensee shall comply with all relevant health and safety regulations.

5

Page 140

4

PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE
The licensee shall ensure this objective is met.

5

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM
The premises licence holder or designated premises supervisor or persons acting under their
authorisation, shall when deemed necessary, request for proof of age, such as photo-driving
licences, PASS accredited proof of age cards, student cards, and passports.

6

Page 141

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

7

Page 142

Annex 4 - Plans

8

Page 143
London Borough of Lambeth
Public Protection
2 Herne Hill Road
London
SE24 0AU
Tel: 020 7926 6108

Part B
Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary
Premises Licence Number

05/02154/PRMCON/385

Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including
Post Town, Post Code
Retail 24
41 Streatham Hill
London
SW2 4TP
Telephone number

020 8674 3318

Where the licence is time limited the dates
The opening hours of the premises
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00

-

00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00
00:00

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Supply of Alcohol
Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Supply of Alcohol
Christmas Day
Christmas Day
Good Friday
Monday - Saturday
Sunday

12:00
19:00
08:00
08:00
10:00

-

15:00
22:30
22:30
05:00
05:00

9

Page 144

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence
Rashid Akhter ·& Shamim Rashid
Thornton Heath
Surrey
Telephone contact details:

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of
alcohol
Mr Rashid Akhter

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited

10

Page 145
Annex E

Page 146

Page 147

This page is intentionally left blank

